
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monday, 11 January 2021 at 6.00 pm 
 
 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and 
public may view the proceedings at this virtual 

meeting via this weblink  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTn

wgp0Ku8iFLQ 
 

 
 
 

Resources & Delivering Value 
Scrutiny Board  

 

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: 
Councillors Mrs K Wild (Chairman), 
T Dicicco (Vice-Chairman), M Allen, 
B Groom, M Gough, M Brain, M Parker, 
W Qais and J Fairburn 
 

 
NICK PAGE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121 704 6000  
 
Paul Rogers 
Tel: 0121 704 6550 
Email: paul.rogers@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date: Wednesday, 23 December 2020 
 

 
RESOURCES & DELIVERING VALUE SCRUTINY BOARD  

 
 Monday, 11 January 2021 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY OR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
 

3.  QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
 

4.  MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

To consider for approval the Minutes arising from the Resources and Delivering 
Value Scrutiny Board meeting held on 2nd December 2020. 
 

5.  MTFS UPDATE – BUDGET STRATEGY 2021/22 – 2023/24 (Pages 11 - 24) 
 

To seek comments on the budget proposals identified for 2021/22 to 2023/24 
within the Resources cabinet portfolio to go forward to the Resources and 
Delivering Value Scrutiny Board and the Full Cabinet in February 2021. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
RESOURCES & DELIVERING VALUE SCRUTINY BOARD - 2 December 2020 

 
 

 

1  

MINUTES 

 
 
Present: Councillors: Mrs K Wild (Chairman), T Dicicco (Vice-Chairman), 

M Allen, B Groom, M Gough, M Brain, M Parker and W Qais 
 

Officers:  
 

Apologies:  Councillors: J Fairburn 
 

  
 

1. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

Present: 
 
 
 

Councillors: K Wild (Chairman), T Dicicco (Vice Chairman), Mrs K Wild 
(Chairman), T Dicicco (Vice-Chairman), M Allen, B Groom, M Gough, 
M Brain, M Parker and W QaisM Allen, B Groom and M Brain 

Officers: Paul Johnson, Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 
Sam Gilbert, Assistant Director (Finance and Property Services) 
Mark Pinnell, Executive Director (Asset Management & Development, 
SCH) 
Adrian Cattell, Head of Human Resources 
Paul Rogers, Democratic Services 
 

  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J Fairburn. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY OR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

3. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  
 
No questions or deputations were received. 
 

4. MINUTES  
 
The Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny Board: 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(i) To agree the Public Minutes arising from the Resources and Delivering 
Value Scrutiny Board meeting held on 9 November 2020 as an accurate 
record. 

 
5. FOLLOW UP REPORT – ‘IMPLICATIONS ARISING FROM THE HACKITT 

REVIEW POST GRENFELL’  

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
RESOURCES & DELIVERING VALUE SCRUTINY BOARD - 2 December 2020 

 
 

 

2  

 
The Assistant Director (Finance and Property Services) introduced the report to 

the Members of the Scrutiny Board.   

Members were informed that the report provided an update following the 

Scrutiny Board’s consideration of the Hackitt Review in 2019.  The 

recommendations and implications arising from the Hackitt Review would 

continue to have a significant impact in the sector going forward.  Members 

were further advised that the subject of the Draft Building Safety Bill was 

subject to a future report to Cabinet. 

The Executive Director (Asset Management & Development, SCH) informed 
Members that the golden thread arising from the Hackitt Review related to the 
digital retention of data relating to building information to the required building 
safety standards. The initial assessment of the strategic impact of the draft bill  
could be summarised under the following headings: 

 Resources (entailing the need to employ competent employees) 

 Resident Engagement (key to capturing the voice of residents with 

auditable processes in place) 

 Financial (entailing additional resources and ICT costs, with other areas 

to be quantified) 

 Stock Viability (Options Appraisal) 

 Record Keeping and Processes (all current and future legislation to be 

met)  

 Oversight (requiring a clear accountability framework and detailed 

oversight arrangements in place) 

Members were informed that, in summary, the Draft Building Safety Bill entailed 

the introduction of a more regulatory regime, involving the establishment of 

Duty Holders (i.e. persons that will have accountability and statutory 

responsibilities for managing risks across design, construction and occupation 

of buildings); definition for high rise buildings and the introduction of ‘gateway 

points’ (I.e. stop/go decision points, which will provide rigorous inspection of 

regulatory requirements to help ensure building safety risks are considered 

during planning, design and construction phases). 

Members were advised that the Bill established the Health and Safety 

Executive as the Building Safety Regulator and is held responsible for 

implementing the new arrangements for higher-risk buildings.  The Bill also 

amends the Building Act 1984 to require the regulator to establish and maintain 

registers of building control approvers and building inspectors. 

The Executive Director (Asset Management & Development, SCH) drew 

Members attention to the detail around the arrangements for establishing a 

Page 6



 
RESOURCES & DELIVERING VALUE SCRUTINY BOARD - 2 December 2020 

 
 

 

3  

Building Safety Board to oversee all aspects of building safety and oversight 

arrangements for SCH, the Council and West Midlands Fire Service. 

Following receipt of the presentations, Members submitted a number of related 

questions to the report, which in summary included the following matters: 

With regard to the financial implications arising, Councillor Groom questioned 

whether the Council’s Capital programme of £23.451M for the Housing 

Revenue Account for 2020/21 was to be taken from the Council’s Revenue 

budget directly or from other funding streams.  Board Members were advised 

that the Council was reviewing a variety of funding sources, some of which was 

earmarked for development/acquisitions. Funding for the retro-fitting of sprinkler 

systems was to be taken from Reserves. 

Councillor Qais referenced the Bill’s detail for statutory responsibilities and 

questioned how the private landlord sector would be supported to ensure 

compliance. Members were advised that the Council and SCH would offer 

support, guidance and sign-posting for the private landlord sector regarding the 

new legislation and its implementation.   

Councillor Parker noted that as well as the Building Safety Bill, the Fire Safety 

Bill was also going through the legislative process, which would address the 

overall building safety requirements for high-rise properties.  

The Executive Director (Asset Management & Development, SCH) advised the 

Board that newsletters had been prepared by SCH for tenants explaining how 

the Fire Safety Bill linked to the Building Safety Bill.   

Councillor Wild queried whether the ‘appointed nominated individual’ would be 

an SCH tenant and was advised that the individual could be an appointee of a 

corporate entity, such as SCH or the Council. 

Having considered the report, the Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny 

Board: 

RESOLVED: 

(i) To note the implications arising from the Draft Building Safety Bill with no 

further implications arising to be drawn to the attention of the Cabinet; 

 

(ii) To note the financial implications involved and costs arising from the 

related legislation arising from the Hackitt Review; 

 

(iii) To note and acknowledge the Fire Safety Bill and the significance of its 
future role in supporting the management of the housing stock; 

 
(iv) To receive an informal briefing via e-mail from SCH addressing the Fire 

Safety Bill; and, 
 

Page 7



 
RESOURCES & DELIVERING VALUE SCRUTINY BOARD - 2 December 2020 

 
 

 

4  

(v) To receive a further ‘Implications Arising from the Hackitt Review’ 

Update Report as part of the Scrutiny Board’s Work Programme for the 

2021/22 municipal year. 

 
6. SICKNESS ABSENCE  

 
The Head of Human Resources introduced the report to the Scrutiny Board. 
 
Members were advised that since the 2019 Annual Sickness Absence report 
received by the Scrutiny Board, the sickness absence rate had fallen to 9.9 
days per FTE (Full Time Equivalent) to June 2020. For the year ending 30th 
September 2020 the level of sickness had fallen further to 9.42 days per FTE.  
The total number of days lost for the same period was 17,074. For the year 
ending 31 March 2020 the total number of days lost was 22,134, representing a 
23% reduction in sickness absence. Year ending to November 2020 sickness 
absence figures stood at 9.16 days per FTE.  Members were informed that the 
Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) had set a target of 9.9 days sickness 
absence per FTE to 31 March 2021.   
 
In terms of sickness absence breakdown by Directorate, Members were 
advised that Adult Social Care and Children’s Services reported the highest 
sickness absence days per FTE, although there had been a reduction of 1,000 
sickness absence days for conditions related to mental Health. Of that total, 
one-third of reported mental health conditions were reported as for personal 
reasons. The majority of sickness absence days relating to mental health were 
reported from the Adult Social Care and Children’s Services Directorates. 
Since the start of the pandemic period and up to 30 September 2020, Covid-19 

had resulted in sickness absence totalling 972 days, representing 5% of the 

total sickness absence. 

The Council had undertaken a survey of all its employees to ascertain how staff 

were working and feeling during the pandemic period. A total of 1,730 

responses were received, comprising of over 9,000 individual comments.  Of 

the response, the overwhelming majority welcomed the ability to work from 

home in support of a positive work / life balance, providing the means better 

physical fitness and to support one of the Council’s corporate objectives of 

delivering zero carbon through a significant reduction in commuting to the 

office. However, it should also be noted that some employees had reported 

missing the office environment. The findings of the survey would help shape 

future HR strategies going forward.  

Members were also advised of the Council’s Well-Being Action Plan and of the 

receipt by the Council of the WMCA Thrive at Work accreditation at Bronze 

level, the first local authority to achieve the accreditation. The Council was now 

seeking to achieve Silver status accreditation moving forward. 

Following receipt of the presentation, Members submitted a number of related 

questions to the report, which in summary included the following matters: 

Page 8



 
RESOURCES & DELIVERING VALUE SCRUTINY BOARD - 2 December 2020 

 
 

 

5  

Councillor Allen stated that she was concerned with the level of sickness 
absence in the Adult Social Care and Children’s Service Directorates, querying 
whether there were any underlying factors other than those associated with the 
complexities and stress often associated with the roles in these Directorates. 
Councillor Allen further referenced the Compliments and Complaints Report 
and noted that both services had received the highest number of complaints. 
Councillor Allen questioned whether staff in these services were valued and 
paid adequately and were the Council’s recruitment and retention policies 
adequate. 
 
The Scrutiny Board was informed that the sickness absence figures for the two 
services were higher compared to the wider Council workforce, which could be 
attributed to the nature of the two services, i.e. largely ‘front-line’ in nature with 
staff being susceptible to transmission of illnesses and infections.   
 
Sickness absence was reviewed on a monthly basis and the reported figures 
were an improvement compared to previous years reporting. It was also 
reported that Adult Social Care had seen an increase in mental health sickness 
absence.  Specific attention was paid to mental health related absence by CLT 
and respective Directorate Management Teams and the Council’s line-
managers also received training to facilitate support of staff in this area. 
 
Councillor Parker noted and supported the reported aligning of the Council’s 
Workplace Wellbeing Priorities 2020/21 with the Council’s priorities.  Councillor 
Parker further noted that front-line staff, such as those in the Adult Social Care 
and Children’s Services Directorates, were open to infections and in the case of 
Covid-19 transmission would be subject to self-isolation at home.  The Head of 
Human Resources advised that in any such cases where Covid-19 had been 
contracted through workplace duties resulting in a requirement for self-isolation, 
the resulting absence was not counted as part of the sickness absence figures. 
Furthermore, any office based staff who were self-isolating could continue to 
work from home.  
 
Councillor Qais questioned whether the Council Staff Survey analysis facilitated 
further drilling down of the data for gender, disabilities, and age profiles.  
Members were informed that the Staff Survey led to the production of a 
corporate report, which could be analysed at the level of Team, Service, 
Division and Directorate.  An Action Plan had subsequently been developed to 
address any areas of concern, as well as capturing any equalities implications. 
The Council’s Employee Assistance Programme also facilitated referrals to the 
Occupational Health Service (OHS), which provided services including 
counselling and financial advice. Members were advised that the OHS was well 
utilised, with users identity kept anonymous. 
 
Having considered the report, the Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny 
Board: 
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

(i) To note the report and endorsed the actions identified within it. 

Page 9



 
RESOURCES & DELIVERING VALUE SCRUTINY BOARD - 2 December 2020 

 
 

 

6  

 
7. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
The meeting was not open to the public during discussion of the following item 
because the report contained exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

8. PRIVATE MINUTES  
 

The Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny Board: 
 
 RESOLVED:  
 

(i) To agree the Private Minutes arising from the Resources and Delivering 
Value Scrutiny Board meeting held on 9th November 2020 as an 
accurate record. 

 
 
 

The Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny Board meeting  
closed at 7:03 p.m. 

 
 
 

Time Not Specified 

Page 10



 

 
 

Meeting date: 11 January 2021 

 

Report to: Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny 
Board 

Subject/report 
title: 

MTFS Update – Budget Strategy 2021/22 – 2023/24 

Report from: The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer: 

Karen Cranley – Resources, SCH & Commercial Finance Manager 

karen.cranley@solihull.gov.uk 0121 704 6421 

Anna Leggett – Senior Accountant 

aleggett@solihull.gov.uk 0121 704 6245 
 

 
Wards affected:  

☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

Public/private 
report: 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph: 

 

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To seek comments on the budget proposals identified for 2021/22 to 2023/24 within 
the Resources cabinet portfolio to go forward to the Resources and Delivering Value 
Scrutiny Board and the Full Cabinet in February 2021. 

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 Note the pressures and mitigating actions set out in Appendix A and agree any 
comments to be fed back to the Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny Board and 
the Full Cabinet in February 2021. 

2.2 Consider the budget proposals outlined in the report and agree any comments to be 
fed back to the Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny Board and the Full Cabinet 
in February 2021. 

2.3 Consider the schedule of fees and charges proposed for 2021/22, as attached at 
Appendix B, and agree any comments to be fed back to the Resources and Delivering 
Value Scrutiny Board and the Full Cabinet in February 2021. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

mailto:karen.cranley@solihull.gov.uk
mailto:aleggett@solihull.gov.uk


 

 
 

3. Matters for Consideration 

3.1 The focus of the budget strategy this year has been on reset and recovery in the light 
of the wide-ranging impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. To that end, cabinet portfolios 
have not been asked to propose savings to meet a corporate target, but instead have 
identified options for mitigating service pressures, which were considered by the 
Budget Strategy Group at three meetings in October and November. 

3.2 As part of their work, the Budget Strategy Group considered some specific pressures 
and agreed to recommend the permanent realignment of budgets within the Children’s 
Services and Skills and Economy and Infrastructure portfolios, at a cost of £4.050 
million per annum from 2023/24. In addition, the Group received updates on the 
financial impact of Covid-19 on future years’ budgets, and agreed to include £10.353 
million of projected costs and associated grant funding in the updated MTFS. 

3.3 The government has confirmed that regional pilots of 100% business rates retention 
will continue into 2021/22. It is anticipated that the participating authorities will once 
again benefit from some temporary windfall income in 2021/22 as a result, which it is 
proposed would be contributed to a business rates windfall contingency as in previous 
years.  

3.4 As the actual amounts receivable in respect of each year will not be confirmed until 
after the outturn position is reported, no commitment can be made in respect of the 
proposals for the 2020/21 windfall resources until June 2021. However, the Budget 
Strategy Group agreed to endorse the use of £2.250 million of the forecast windfall 
funding to top up reserves in the Children’s Services and Skills and Economy and 
Infrastructure portfolios.  

Budget proposals 

3.5 As in previous years, the strategy is to manage any movement in the first two years of 
the MTFS as one-off adjustments, using the budget strategy reserve to smooth the 
profile of the funding pressures so that there is no impact on the savings targets 
already being delivered for 2021/22 and 2022/23.  

3.6 The Spending Review published on 25 November contained a number of 
announcements in respect of local government funding, including new one-off grants, 
confirmation of the continuation of other funding streams into 2021/22 and council tax 
thresholds for 2021/22 and 2022/23. The precise implications for individual authorities 
were unclear but the updates to the MTFS considered by the Budget Strategy Group 
included the estimated impact of relevant announcements, resulting in an ongoing 
funding gap for 2023/24 of £2.738 million. The specific funding allocations receivable 
for Solihull are expected to be outlined in the provisional finance settlement and a 
verbal update will be provided at your meeting. 

3.7 At the time of the Members’ Seminar, significant uncertainty around future funding 
levels remained, with the announcement of the provisional finance settlement not 
expected until mid-December and the tax base and business rates forecasts yet to be 
finalised. It was therefore agreed to schedule a fourth meeting of the Budget Strategy 
Group for 11 January, once further clarity was available, to recommend a strategy for 
addressing the funding gap. The outcome of this meeting will be reported to this 

Page 12



 

 
 

Scrutiny Board on 8 February and then Full Cabinet for consideration on 11 February, 
alongside details of the impact of the provisional settlement announcements on the 
MTFS. 

3.8 This will not affect the overall position in terms of the pressures and mitigations 
detailed at Appendix A, on which the Scrutiny Board is asked to provide comments for 
consideration as part of the overall budget proposals to be presented to the Scrutiny 
Board on 8 February. The overall position will then be reported to the Full Cabinet on 
11 February, when members will be asked to agree a budget recommendation to go 
forward to the Full Council on 25 February.  

Fees and charges 

3.9 As part of the Council’s fees and charges policy, the charges levied by the Council 
need to be approved annually as part of the budget setting process. A schedule of 
fees and charges for this scrutiny board is attached at Appendix B to this report. 
These fees and charges take into account the guidance set out in the Council’s policy 
and have been reviewed in the light of the pressures faced by the Council and with 
reference to current and forecast inflation. 

4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

4.1 In developing the budget proposals for review by the Budget Strategy Group, the 
directorate leadership teams worked with the cabinet portfolio holders to establish the 
scale of the pressures and identify mitigating actions within each service area. 
Background information was provided for each cabinet portfolio to give the Group 
further context for the consideration of the budget proposals. 

4.2 The indicative budgets for the services relating to this scrutiny board are attached at 
Appendix C, together with an overview of the projected reserves position. This 
information will assist members in considering the budget proposals put forward as 
part of this process.  

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

5.1 As outlined in section 4 above, the recommendations of the Budget Strategy Group 
are based on the consideration of the particular financial constraints and service 
delivery context of each individual service area. In determining its recommendations 
the Group sought to balance the requirements of each service area within the forecast 
funding envelope set out by the updated MTFS.  

6. Implications and Considerations 

6.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

Economy: 

1. Revitalising our towns and local 
centres. 

The MTFS provides the financial framework 
which supports the delivery of the Council 
Plan.  

Page 13

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Ourvisionandpriorities/Council_plan.pdf


 

 
 

2. UK Central (UKC) and maximising the 
opportunities of HS2. 

3. Increase the supply of housing, 
especially affordable and social 
housing. 

Environment: 

4. Enhance Solihull’s natural environment. 
5. Improve Solihull’s air quality. 
6. Reduce Solihull’s net carbon emissions. 

The MTFS provides the financial framework 
which supports the delivery of the Council 
Plan.  

People and Communities: 

7. Take action to improve life chances in 
our most disadvantaged communities. 

8. Enable communities to thrive. 
9. Sustainable, quality, affordable 

provision for adults & children with 
complex needs. 

The MTFS provides the financial framework 
which supports the delivery of the Council 
Plan.  

6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

6.2.1 The budget proposals have been shared with all members at a seminar in December 
2020 and each scrutiny board is now asked to consider the proposals which relate to 
their cabinet portfolios in more detail. 

6.2.2 No questions were raised at the members’ seminar in relation to specific budget 
proposals within this portfolio.  

6.2.3 The Budget Strategy Group has agreed that consultation with the public will take place 
on key specific savings proposals. There are no savings proposals as such this year, 
but the budget recommendations outlined here have been shared with the unions and 
feedback will be presented to the Resources and Delivering Value Scrutiny Board on 
8 February and the Full Cabinet on 11 February.  

6.3 Financial implications: 

6.3.1 In order to set a balanced budget, the authority’s limited resources need to be 
targeted at the Council’s priorities and any unfunded service pressures will have to be 
met from corresponding budget reductions elsewhere.  

6.4 Legal implications: 

6.4.1 The budget proposals attached at Appendices A to C were developed with regard to 
legal implications where applicable.  

6.5 Risk implications: 

6.5.1 Based on the information provided, it is officers’ opinion that the significant risks 
associated with failure to deliver the medium term financial strategy have been 
identified and assessed 

Page 14



 

 
 

6.6 Equality implications: 

6.6.1 The budget proposals will be screened for ‘due regard’ to equality and, where 
appropriate, will be subject to a Fair Treatment Assessment before implementation.  

7. List of appendices referred to 

7.1 Appendix A: Pressures and Mitigating Actions 2021/22 to 2023/24 

7.2 Appendix B: Proposed Fees and Charges 2021/22 

7.3 Appendix C: Indicative Service Budgets 2021/22 

8. Background papers used to compile this report 

8.1 None 

9. List of other relevant documents 

9.1 None 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Resources Portfolio - Pressures and Mitigating Actions 2020/21 to 2023/24

Resources Directorate

2020/21

One-off

£'000

2021/22

One-off

£'000

2022/23

One-off

£'000

2023/24

One-off

£'000

2023/24

Ongoing

£'000

Pressures

Covid - Commercial income 833 0 0 0 0 

Covid - Commercial rents 398 0 0 0 0 

Covid - Catering Service net income loss 395 0 0 0 0 

Covid - Communications Team pressure 77 0 0 0 0 

Covid - Income & Awards loss of courts income 60 0 0 0 0 

Covid - Contribution to West Midlands Co-ordination Hub 20 0 0 0 0 

Total pressures 1,783 0 0 0 0 

Ongoing mitigation

One-off mitigation

Covid - Minor savings identified from reduced activity (56) 0 0 0 0 

Covid - Local Government finance package (1,727) 0 0 0 0 

Total one-off mitigation (1,783) 0 0 0 0 

Total mitigation (1,783) 0 0 0 0 

Net position (after one-off mitigation) 0 0 0 0 0 

Description Period 6 Forecast

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Resources and Delivering Value Portfolio - Fees and Charges for 2021/22 Appendix B

2020/21 

Charge

£

2021/22 

Proposed 

Charge

£

Notes Change

%

Statutory charges no change. 0.0%

Inc. VAT £483.00 £493.00 2.1%

Inc. VAT £483.00 £493.00 2.1%

Inc. VAT £208.00 £212.00 1.9%

Inc. VAT £135.00 £138.00 2.2%

Inc. VAT £135.00 £138.00 2.2%

Inc. VAT £96.00 £96.00 0.0%

Inc. VAT £483.00 £493.00 2.1%

Inc. VAT £514.00 £524.00 1.9%

Freedom of Information

The Council is allowed to recover the costs of printing, copying and postage and package. The charge is 

only implemented if it would be £5 or more. The cost is normally 10 pence per sheet of paper, 20 pence 

for double sided printed paper. There may be times when costs exceed this in which case the person will 

be notified and a reason provided.

Strategic Land

Negotiation of Lease/License

Increase in line with general rate of 

inflation, while maintaining a round figure 

inclusive of VAT.                                    

'Initial administration and valuation fee' 

retained at previous fee level

Legal Fees

Negotiation of Lease/License

Minor Land Disposals (deductible from purchase price if sale proceeds)

Retrospective consent to compliance with residential property covenants

Negotiation and Settlement of Residential Leasehold Sales

Initial administration and valuation

Surveyors' Fees

Legal Fees

Surveyors' Fees

Consent in advance of alterations or change of use 

P
age 19



2020/21 

Charge

£

2021/22 

Proposed 

Charge

£

Notes Change

%

Freedom of Information

£2.05 £2.05 0.0%

£2.20 £2.20 0.0%

£2.30 £2.30 0.0%

£3.05 £3.05 0.0%

£2.55 £2.55 0.0%

Half Day 

Internal
£36.00 £37.00 2.8%

Half Day

External
£134.00 £137.00 2.2%

Half Day 

Internal
£71.00 £72.00 1.4%

Half Day

External
£268.00 £273.00 1.9%

Half Day 

Internal
£30.00 £31.00 3.3%

Half Day

External
£107.00 £109.00 1.9%

Half Day 

Internal
£284.00 £290.00 2.1%

Half Day

External
£750.00 £765.00 2.0%

The paid for meal price will not be 

increased as, in the current economic 

climate, we believe this would negatively 

impact on the take up of school meals. To 

offset the lost revenue, the numbers of 

meals sold will be increased by 2.5% as a 

minimum. We believe that it would be 

better for more children to have a meal at 

an accessible price than fewer children 

paying an increased price.

Primary

Secondary

Adult

Adult (on duty)

Nursery

Corporate Property Services

Room Hire Charges

Catering

Meal Prices

Increase in line with inflationary increases 

for building running costs

(to the nearest £).

 Sans Souci Conference Room 1, Conference Room 2, Conference Room 

3 or Lecture Room

Sans Souci Conference Rooms 1 and 2 combined

Sans Souci Music Room, Syndicate Room or ICT Training Room

Sans Souci Whole Centre

P
age 20



2020/21 

Charge

£

2021/22 

Proposed 

Charge

£

Notes Change

%

Freedom of Information £64.00 £65.00 1.6%

£124.00 £126.00 1.6%

£131.00 £134.00 2.3%

£169.00 £172.00 1.8%

£260.00 £265.00 1.9%

£339.00 £346.00 2.1%

Financial Operations

Category I Inc. VAT £745.00 £745.00

Inc. VAT £775.00 £775.00

Inc. VAT £650.00 £650.00

Category III Inc. VAT £300.00 £300.00

Category IV Inc. VAT £216.00 £216.00

Price set by 

the Office of 

the Public 

Guardian and 

may change 

at short notice

Category II

Annual management fee for first year

Annual management fee for subsequent years

Annual property management fee

Preparation of annual account

Where assets are below £16,000 the 

charge will not exceed 3.5% of assets on 

the anniversary of the date of the order. 

Public Authority Deputyship Fees

Work up to and including the date upon which 

the Court makes the order

The Civic Suite 

Half Day

Full day

Council Chamber Half Day

Council Chamber Full day

Increase in line with inflationary increases 

for building running costs

(to the nearest £).

The Loft at Bluebell Centre
For Council Partners half day

For other users half day

P
age 21



2020/21 

Charge

£

2021/22 

Proposed 

Charge

£

Notes Change

%

Freedom of Information

Council Tax £70.00 £70.00 0.0%

Business Rates £100.00 £100.00 0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

0.0%

£500.00 £500.00 0.0%

£475.00 £475.00 0.0%

£250.00 £250.00 0.0%

Statutory charges. No Changes for 

2021/22

Sale of Edited Register

Statutory charges. No Changes for 

2021/22

Local Authorities are only permitted to 

charge reasonable costs for the issue of a 

court summons and liability order. As costs 

have not increased, these charges cannot 

be increased.

Electoral Registration

Sale of Full Register

Statutory charges. No Changes for 

2021/22

In data format, £20 plus £1.50 for each 1,000 entries (or remaining part of 1,000 entries) 

In printed format, £10 plus £5 for each 1,000 entries (or remaining part of 1,000 entries) 

Advertising in "Your Solihull" Magazine

A4 Back page Costs of Your Solihull have been reviewed 

and the prices reflect the change from print 

to digital editions, taking into account the 

lower circulation figures.

A4 Inside front

A5 half inside front (landscape)

Communications

Sale of the list of overseas electors

Income & Awards

Court Costs

In data format, £20 plus £1.50 for each 100 entries (or remaining part of 100 entries) 

In printed format, £10 plus £5 for each 100 entries (or remaining part of 100 entries) 

In data format, £20 plus £1.50 for each 1,000 entries (or remaining part of 1,000 entries)

In printed format, £10 plus £5 for each 1,000 entries (or remaining part of 1,000 entries)

P
age 22



 
APPENDIX C 

Resources  
 
The tables below summarise the main responsibilities of this portfolio together with details of 
the revenue budgets and reserve balances for 2021/22. 
 

Main responsibilities 

 Collection of local taxes and administration of benefits. 

 Corporate support services: Accountancy, Human Resources, Information and 
Communication Technology & Information Governance, Procurement, Communications, 
Legal, Business Intelligence & Improvement and Internal Audit. 

 The Council’s buildings, land and property assets and investments. 

 Catering Services. 

 Civic and democratic services to Members and the Mayoralty. 

 The Council’s Treasury Management responsibilities. 

 Emergency Planning. 

  

Revenue 
Budget 
2021/22 

Objective analysis - division of service: £000 

Audit, Governance and Risk Management 1,436 

Budget Strategy (3,014) 

Business Intelligence and Improvement 683 

Catering (110) 

Collection of Local Taxes and Benefits 1,323 

Communications 475 

Corporate Property 4,767 

Democratic and Mayoral Services 1,817 

Directorate Management and Strategy 1,063 

Emergency Planning 148 

Financial Operations  16,204 

Human Resources 3,068 

ICT and Information Governance 7,000 

Investment Properties and Land (5,290) 

Legal Services 1,314 

Other Joint Authorities Services (151) 

Procurement 711 

Covid-19 funding (11,304) 

Net expenditure 20,140 

  

Indicative net budget 2022/23   25,686 

Indicative net budget 2023/24   26,918 
 

 

Forecast 
balance 
1/4/2021 

£000 

Forecast use/ 
(contribution) 

2021/22 
£000 

Forecast 
balance 

31/3/2022 
£000 

Forecast 
balance 

31/3/2024 
£000 

Reserves  (14,861) 2,310 (12,551) (7,694) 

 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 MTFS Update – Budget Strategy 2021/22 – 2023/24
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C


